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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWI] PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Middlesex County Courthouse, located on .S, Route 17 in Szaluda, is the
central building in a complex of county office buildings consisting of the courthouse,
clerk's office, and jail. A Confederate Civil War monument completes the classic
Virginian courthouse square bounded by a low, Flemish-bond brick wall. The court-
house building, erected in 1852, is an example of the Virginia temple-form, arcaded
courthouse plan.

The two-and-a-half story, rectangular structure is executed in Flemish-bonded
brick, in a "T"-shaped plan. The rear section of the "T" plan was added in the 1920s.
The three bays of the Tuscan pedimented-gable facade contain a first-story arcaded
loggia, one bay in depth, consisting of five rounded arches. The arches are painted
white, the color of the building's wooden exterior trim, Within the arcade, twin
double doorways with simple architrave trim lead into the courtroom. All the windows
contain this simply molded trim, and all retain the original 6/6 sashes. 1In addition
to the Tuscan pediment on the main (south) facade, the building contains similar
pediments on both ends of the lateral wing across the rear of the main block. A lunette
is in the tympanum of the front pediment. An open arcade connects the original court~
house to a modern, two-story counterpart constructed in 1965. The interior of the
courthouse may have originally contained a two-story courtroom with gallery, similar to
that found in contemporary examples; unfortunately, the interior has been considerably
renovated, and the plan has been altered to conform to present day use. '

In the courthouse complex stands the county clerk's office, a one-story, gable-
roofed, American-bond brick structure built at the same time as the courthouse. Also
in the complex, and stylistically contemporary with the other buildings, is the jail,
a hip-roof, two-story brick structure laid in American bond. The main facade of three
bays contains a transom-lit door surrounded by simple trim. The windows on all
elevations contain segmental arches and simple trim. A corbeled brick cornice is
carried around the building, broken by segmental arches of the windows, -
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The Mlddlesex County Courthouse as built in 1852, is a late but significant
example of the arcaded-plan courthouse which had its precedent in Virginia's colonial
ﬂcourthouses and earliest civic buildings. By adopting the arcade plan, the Middlesex
County commf'ssioners elected to continue a noble and traditional example of Virginia's

brick architecture.

When the Middlesex County Courthouse was erected in 1852, the arcade plan or
"townhall" type of courthouse had stylistically been replaced by the Jeffersonian
temple-portico courthouse, of which those in Charlotte County (1821-1823) and
Lunenburg County (1823-1827) are significant examples. Although two arcade examples,
Madison County Courthouse (1829-30) and Sussex County Courthouse (1825-28), parallel
in date Jeffersonian examples, the pervasive courthouse building type had become the
"temple" porticoed example of the classical revival. The Middlesex County Courthouse
is thus a reinterpretation of the colonial-arcade type as the form had stylistically
evolved by the early decades of the 19th century.

i) :

The county seat was originally located in the colonial seaport of Urbanna. An act
of the Virginia General Assembly of March 8, 1849, gave the citizens of Middlesex County
the right to vote on moving the courthouse from Urbanna to Saluda. The citizens voted
in favor of the move and allocated $3,000.00 for the courthouse and $1,000.00 for the
jail.

On September 28, 1852, the county commissioners ordered the sheriff to collect
a levy from the citizens and pay builder John P. Hill $1,010.95 as partial payment
for the erection of the courthouse building at Saluda. Substantial repairs were made to
the courthouse building in November of 1865. William R. Jones received payment for
building the jail.

While the courthouse served its appointed function throughout the 19th apd well
into the 20th century, the rear (north) section was added in the 1920s and the clerk's
office was moved into that section in 1931. A new wing, complementing the old court-
house design,was constructed in 1965, and a new jail subsequently was built behlnd the
courthouse complex. S :
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VEHBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The 2 acres comprising the Middlesex County Courthouse property are bounded on the NE by
State Route 674, on'the SE by State Route 675, on the SW by State 'Route 33, and on the
NW by State Route 618. Four buildings, the courthouse, the Woodward Building {1965}, the
clerk’s office “(ca. 1852), and the jail (1852), are lncluded m.thln the boundarles along

with the Confederate monument. -
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As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 {Public Law B9-665). 1
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Middlesex County Courthouse
Middlesex County, Virginia

Sketch Map - Not to Scale

State Route 675

Woodward Building (1965)
Clerk's Office (ca. 1852)

Confederate Monument (1910)
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Virginia Historic landmarks Commission
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